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Laikipia (lountv litlucation llursary Fun<l
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l. Acronyms and Glossary of Tcrms

a) Acronyms

BOM

ICPN K

IPSAS

PFM

PSASB

Kshs

Board of Managenrent

Institute olCertified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

I)ublic Finance Managenrent

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Keny'a Shillings

l
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Information and Manage ment

d inlbrmation

a County Education Ilursary fund is established by Laikipia County Education
d Act, (2014) and arnendrnent rcgulation ot'2017

principal activity is to provide education bursary and scholarship awards to

students ra'ho hail tiom the County in various education tacilities across the

ectlve rs to:

access to education;

and increase enrolment, retention, completion and transition rates in schools;

education standards and literac_v" levels in the County; and

poverty. disparities and ineclLrality.

ctivities

I rnission ol'the }"uncl is to provide cducation bursary and scholarship a',vards to
icling in l.aikipia Countv

n of thc Laikipia (iountl' l'lducation llursary h-untl

on ot'thc Irund Stephen Biwott Kisorio

cnlen t te it nl

Irund ll nlstrator John Gichuki

lrurtd countant Operations Angela Wahome

d countant lrinancial l{eporting Calcb Wanjohi

b

c

II

Ri.f , Position Namc

Namelkf ' Position



I.aikipia (lountr' [irlucation l]ursary Iiuntl
Annual licport an<l Financial Statcmcnts for lhc vcar cn<lcrl .Iunc.10,202.1

Kcv F,ntih antl Managcrncnt (('ontinucrl)

c) Firlucian Ovcrsight Arrangcmcnts

0 Registercd C)ffices

P.O.llox l27l - 10400

Interim County I Ieadquarter Iluilding

Kcnyatta Avcnuc

Nanyuki, KENYA

g) Fund Contacts

Te lephone : (25 4) 02023 527 20

E,-nrai I : reports.treasury@laikipia.go.ke

Website: www. laikirriacountygovcrnrnent.go.ke

h) Fund Bankers

Farnily bank

Nanyuki Branch

Nanyuki-Nycri Iload

i) IndependentAuditors

Auditor Gcneral

Olflce ol'l'he Auditor Gcneral

Annivcrsary -l-owers. [Jniversity Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00r00

I I)ircctoratc Internal Audit IIead of Inlernal Audit

2 County asscnrbly ol Laikipia

Olllcc of thc Auditor -(icncral

Clerk to Countv Assenrblv

Auditor -General

.+ Oftlce ol the Controller ol Budget Controller of Budget

SN lJ) ( s I I Io ll N am e
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l,aikipia (lountt' llducation llursary ['unrl
Annual licport an<l Financial Statcmcnts for thc l'car cnrlctl .lunc 30,202-1

3. (ihairpcrson of thc l,aikipia ('ounlr' [,]duortinn l]rrrsan Fund

Stephen Biwott Kisorio

BLE
iENT

Bom on l2rr' August 1976. Mr.stephen is the

CECM-Trade, Tourisrn, Cooperatives and

Enterprise developnrent and acting CECM

Education. Youth and sports. He has worked

with UNFICR as education trainee and louth
officer tbr Syears and l5byears with TSC as a

secondary school teacher. He holds a Bachelor

ol education (Arts) frorn Moi university.

vll
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I Dctails of qualificatiorrs and erpcricnccNamc



tl Education llursarl' !'und
veirr enclcd Junc 30, 202.1

.l Ke1'Man cnrent'l'cirm
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gcla Waho

Born in 1972, Mr Gichuki is the Chiei Oflicer fbr
Education and library services. He has worked
with leachers Service Commission tbr 20 years in
various management capacities. He hold a

Bachelor of Education (Arts) degree tiom Kenyatta

university and Master of Edrrcation (Admin) tiom
universitl, o1' Nairobi.

Ilorn in l99l .

Shc is thc Accountant in charge ot'Operatir-rns lbr
the lfuncl. Sht: I lolcls a Bachelor's Degree in

Actuarial Science. She is u member ol the

{ssociation of Certilled Chartered Accountants

runcl also is a member ol the lnstitute of'Intr:rnal
Auditors of Kenya. She has experience working in

both external and internal auclit.

A

leb Mrt'angi

,

l-lorn in 1980.

Mr Caleb is the Accountant in charge oi lrinancial
Ileporting fbr the Fund. Holds Bachelor's Degree

in Commerce (Finance) and Post Graduate

Diploma in Project Management (I)KUT).He also

a Certitled Public Accountant of Kenva (Cl,A-K).

vlll
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Laikipia County E.lucation llursarv Fund
Annual llcport anrl Financial Statcmcnts for thc t'car cntlcrl ,lunc 30,2023

5. Fund Chairperson's llcport

The furrd takes delight in prcserrting the 2022123 annual llnancial statenrents and report. The

fund operates under the arnbit of the deparlnrent of Education & Library Services. The lund is

established under thc Laikipia County llducation Fun<! Act ol(2014).

The Laikipia courlty bursary fund Act.20 l4 is an act of county assenrbly oll-aikipia to provide

tbr the establishrrrent ol'the county education bursary tund and adnrinistration of the lund tbr tlre
purposes crracted by the county assenrbly ofl.aikipia

'l'he purpose ol'the Act is to provide lbr the legal lramework tbr establishing a County Education
Bursary Fund for providing tlrrancial assistance to the poor and vulnerable studetrts in the county
in order to: increase access to education. promote and increase enrolment. retentiotr. conrpletion
and transition rates in schools. intprove education standards and literacy levels. reduce poverty.

disparities and inequality.

During the 3"1 Quartcr of this t'inancial year there were changes in the nranagement that sarv John

Gichurr appointecl io replace .lohn Ngunrba as the fund Administrator and the Chiel Offlctr
Education and Library Scrvices Department.

Thc f und through lhc ward colr.rrnittecs conducted the bursaries award processes. 'f he Iund

proceedcd with thc dishursernerrt and issuing of cheques. The fund was able to disbursc lifly
nrillion shillings allocated to 9.533 studcnts in secondary day and boarding schools. collegcs and

vtc's, special sclrools and universities. l'he firnd also awarded scholarships to bright rreedy

studerrts.

Thc tirnd corrtirrues lo cntploy new wavs and rnethods to nrake it more efficient and eft'cctive to

address any gaps and bottlenccks rcalized during identiflcation. veritlcation. awardirtg.
distribution arrd gctting f'ccdback llonr bcncllciaries.

In conclusion the fund ronains conrnrittcd arrd cmboldened in its oh.iective of ensuring it
supporls the need iest students in their quest fi)r education empowerment.

J

C)

4r t- I

Stephen Biwott Kisorio

Chairperson olthe Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund

Date: 2l't Novernber 2023

lx
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6. l{eport of he Fund Atlministrator'l

Tfre Fund ain$ to provitle bursary awards
nfeds schools,]ltechnical & vocational traini
s{udents uho lfre rcsidents r-rl' Laikipia u,'r
aivards tbr theI
u,f<,uld drop til
cf urse of impll

An amount tol
altocated equ{
a{cordance wl
s{condary sch{

to students enrolled in secondary schools, special
ng Centre's. colleges and univcrsities to most needy
rntv. 'l'hc f'und is also r,sed to providc scholarship

most deser\ing and h,ight studcnts fiont humblc background wlro if'rrot supportcd
im school. l'he lLrncl also caters tbr any admin:strative expenses incurred in the
lmentation.

trlling tc, seventv-llve per cenl of the toral amount set aside lbi disbursement was
lly to all the Wards and the remaining twent-\, tive pcr ccnr was allocated in
th the prescribed tbrrnula dctermined in accordance with the popularion ol
rol going children ar.rd poverty levels.

'lhc btrrsarv adplicaric,n and clisbursernent proccss runs starting with advertiscrnent tirr bursaly
and applicatiorjs are reccived at war d lcvels where vetting is done by ward bursarv committec.

'lhe award wa categorised per school category as stipulated below;

No ol' catcgo

)

-)

The tbllowing
totals to Kshs.

I {l'lt. L\rr:rr tl pcr r :t lcgr) r\

t.ir er! rirtct.itr irr t t.lrl io rr

Translt'rs lle ived Since Inception

ble and graph show the total transt'ers received since its inception in 20 l4 which
t7,95t,t47

Yl:AI{

48.5 25 50 50

lrll,ll I lr:rrrrlerr

\

School catcgorv Amount

l

I)a,r' seconclar'), school 3.0(x)

l]oarding secondarv scirooI

6,50()

8.000

100.(tU0 pe r rvarclScholarships

Special sc hoo ls

C'ollcgcs. V't C's & univcrsities

20 t4il5 2015t16 2016il7 20nil8 2018/r9 2020t21 202U22 2022t23

Kshs.
(Million)

4 45 50 50

5

5.000

40
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Transfers Received Since lnception
50,000,000.00

s0,000,000.00

40,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

AMOUNT

-]_

.f ^&" *f
"o*t" 

,ott' tnn'

^$ ^q ^\ ^^r "D^oY ^oY ^oY ^oY^r\' ^s\' ^o\u ^+u $'
1.e" 1,e" 1,o' 1,s' .rsu

Budget performance against actual amounts

The fbllowing table and graph show the budget performance against actual atrrounts

lirr:ur-c I I l.,rn\[cr'. l{r'ttir crl Sirlc(. ln.cptioll

lrrhlr' .\ llrrrltt'l l'r'r[rrr nr;rnct' \tl:rin\l \ctr,rl \lrounl\

Budgct
(Kshs)

..\ctu a I

(Kshs)

Transfers lionr County Executive 50.000.000 50.000.000

Rccei"'cd li'onr I)cpartnrcnt 800.000

Administration I'ixpenses 1.500.000 1.399.692

Bursary and Scholarships 48.500.000 48. r0i.486

xl
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50,000,00

40,000,00

30,000,00

20,000,00

10,000,00

00

00

00

00

00

BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION

I BUDGET

r ACTUAL

*.€

"."",-""

I ilure I llurlgrl lr p lcttt cttl itt irr rr

l"rrtu re ()u tlo of thc ['u nd

'fhe bursarl.

increment of
d budget allocation tbr the year 202312024 is Kshs.75,000,000; this is an

ount Kshs.25,000,000 tiom the year 202212023. In the tinancial year 202212023

there u'ere ?6. 64 applications fbr bursary fiom all wards and the tund only rnanaged to allocate

bursarl'to 9.53 needy students.'['he gap between the benetlciaries and applicants was too huge

thus creating a ecessity to increasc the total anrount clisbursecl as shown in ligurc 3

\ll
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Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts for the 1'ear cndetl .lune 30, 2023

7. Statement C)f Pcrformance Against The CounI Fund's Predetcrmined C)biectivcs

I n trod u ctio n

Section 164 (2) (f) of the Public Finance Managernent Act.20l2 requires that. at the end olcach
tlnancial year. the Accounting officer when prcparing financial statcrnents of each County
(iovernrnent entitl' Governnrent entities in accordance with the standards and tbrmats prescribed
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Iloard includes a statement of the county governnlent
cntity's perlorrnarrcc agai nst predeternrinccl oh.lcctives.

1'he key development ob.iective of the Fund as per the strategic plan fbr the financial year2023-
2427 are lo

Increasc access to education tbr all students residing in Laikipia countv

Promote and increase enrolment, retention, completion and transition rates in schools

Improve education standards and literacy levels in the County

Reduce poverty, disparities and inequality.

I)rogress on attainmcnt of Stratcgic <levclopnrcnt ob.iectircs

Below we rovide thc ro ress or1 attall]lrl thc slated oh ectives

a)

b)

c)

d)

l. Irrcrcase access to
education.

Enhanced
literacv

Number of'
benetrciarics

2. I)romote a'rd increase
cnrolnrenl. ! etention,
conrplction and transitiorr
ratcs in schools

Enhanced
literate
population

Numher oI'
students
benellciarics
transitioned

During FY 2022123.
9.533 students in
sccondary school
VTCs Colleges.
urriversities and
special sclror,ls were
awarded bursaries and
scholarships to enable
continue with their
studies

3. Inrprove education
standards and literacy
levels in the county

Enhanced
literate
population

Number of most
needy students
completing
various levels ol
education

Increased intake to
VTCs

Education
Empowerment

4. Reduce poverty.
disparities and inequality

I nnovative
and
inventive
minds

Number of
innovations and

inventions

\ l

tiiutc,*r" llncticain. I'crfornt:tncel'rogram Objectiv<
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'fhc CECM lr

8. (iurJrora le overnir nct: Statcnten t

'l'hcre is estab

ucation appoints the Ward llducation Bursary Committee.

shed tbr each ward the Ward Education Bursary Committee

consists ol seven members who includel'l'hc cornmitte

a) Wirrd m l nl strato r

b) Count ofllcer in charge ol'e'ducation in the v,ard who is the secretary

c) One rson representing IrBO involved in education in the ward

d) One p on representing NGO involvcd in education in the ward

e) One ld resident representing PWDs

t) One w rd resident representiirg Youth

g) One p son nominated by teachers' associations

[.'u rrctions ol' e Wartl Education Ilursarv Comnrittee
awarenL'ss anlong residents ol'the warci about the tirncl.rJ Creati

b) Recei ng reviewing and approving applications lbr bursary

c) Deter ning amount of bursarl' to bc awarded to each approvecl application

d) Monit ng and evaluation progress olperlbnnance

Ward Educa on Bursary' Comnrittre llem uncration
fhe allowanc s fbr men.rbers of the comnrittee is determined by county l'reasury which ls
primaril.v" dete ined by the SI{C

Vacation ol' o lcc sc hedule pnrvisions as to the conduct of Ilusincss and af'liri rs of the
com m ittce
A member o1' e committee mav vacate the of flce if

a) Has be n absent fiom three consecutive meetings olthe cornrnittee without perr-nission of
thc cha rpcrs()n

b) ls con cted of a crirninal otlence and sentenced to inrprisonment fbl terrn excecding six
lnontI1 or to a frne exceeding ten thousand shillings

cted of an ollence involving clishonesty or liauclc) ls conv

XIV



l,aikipia County Education llursary Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcmcnts for thc vcar cn<lcrl .Irrnc 30,2023

d) Is incapacitated by prolongeci physical or mer,tal illness

c) Fails to conrply with provisiorrs ol'the act relating to disclosure

Meetings schedulc provisions as to the conduct of Business and affairs of the Ward
Education Bursary Committee

(l) The Cotnr.r.rittees meets not nrore than twelve times in every flnancial year and not nrore than

tbur nronths shall elapse between the date of one meeting and the date of the rrext nreeting.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (l) of the Act, the chairperson may. and

upon requisition in writing by at least seven rnenrbers with the approval of the executive mernber

Convene a special meeting of the Committee at any tinre for the transaction of the business of the

('onrrn ittee

(3 ) LJnless three quarters of the total mernbers of the Conrmittee otherwise agree, at least

fbulteen days written notice of every meeting ol'the Conrnrittee shall be given to every metnber

ol' thc Corlrnittec

(4) l-he quorurr for the conduct of the business of thc Corrnrittee is five mernbers including tlre

clrairperson or the person presiding

(5) The chairperson presides at every nreeting of the Comnrittee at which he is present but, in his

absence. the menrbers present shall elect one ol their nurlbers to preside. who shall, with respect

to that meeting and the business transacted thereat. have all the powers of the chairperson.

(6) Unless a unaninrous decision is reached, a decision on any matter before the Committee is

by, a ma.jority of votes of the members present and voting and. in the case of an equality of votes.

the chairperson or the person presiding shall have a casting vote.

xY
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t Discussion And Analysis

rlbrnrance

tes under the ambit ol the departmcnt of Education and library Services. Ihe f und

nder thc Laikipia County Education Fund Act (20 l4) and amendment Act 2017 in

ce the Ilnancial burden ol po,rr tarnilies in linancing the transition liom prirnurv

ondary' edrication an,-l lirrther to tertiary institutions. Since the implcmentation ol'

the countl' has expcrienced hrgher transition rates tiom primarl, to secondary

s cases ol dropouts. A total number ol' 9.533 necdy students who hail tiom

benetrted tiom the bursary lund in the tinancial year as analyzed here-below:

cirtions Vs llcn elicia rics

6o'7

781

546

grlicttiorrs \ r llclrlici:rlit

ll

xvl
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I

BURSARY APPLICATIONS VS BENEFICIARIES
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Ma.ior Risks Facing the Fund

lnlrcrently. thc Fund encounlers ditfbrent risks including political risk. and econornic risk such as

irrterest fluctuation risk or inllation risk in its operations.

Risk categories
'ilre l"und has idcntitled and categoriscd risks as fbllows:

a) Financial risks: 1'hey arc associated with thc flnancial operations of the Fund.

b) Operational risks: 'l hese arc risks associatcd with the operatiorls ol the Irund.

c) Lcgal and rcgulatory risks: Lcgal risks can arisc flom r.ron-conrpliance with thc lcgal

arrd rcgulatory rcqrrirerlcnts.

Financial performance

In tlre Financial Year 202212023 the bursary fund managed to disburse Kshs. 48.103,486. Tne

fund incurred adnrinistration expcnses arrrounting to Kshs. I .348,500. I Iurnan capital investment

is important in ecr.nomic development and therefore completion of school will equip learners

'uvith necessary skills for work.

The graph below shows bursary allocations per u'ard

\\,I I

.r-_...r.-_-]--



Laikipia Countl' Education llursarv F-uncl
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ALLOCATION AMOUNT PER WARD
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Laikipia Countv Education Bursary Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemcnts for thc vcar cnrlcrl .lunc 30,2023

10. Fl,nvironmental and Sustainahility llcporting

a) CommunitvEngagements
The lund has been involved in public erlgagcnlcnts to crcatc awareness ol thc lurrd as well as

gather intbrrnation on cmerging needs. l'he Fund and its stakeholders are increasingly

enrphasizing on the nced to ensure sustainability fbr hoth ils birdgetary allocations and resourcc

mobilization through lobbying to increase its financing capahilities with an ob.iective of ensuring

that thc Fund's going conccrn is secured.

h) Market placc practices

Responsible nrarketing and advertisernent - The Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund

also practices responsible marketing and advertisernent using County Golernment social

media platlorms and print nredia well as respecting paynrent practices.

Product stervardship - The fund has the Act that guides on how this firnd allorvs

applicants to Indir iduals with needy cases.

Responsible competition practice- thc Fund ensures that only the needy l.aikipia citizenry

are identifled and have equal access to the bursary firnd.

a

rt

c) SustainabiliW stratcg_v and profile
The LCITBF is keen on posterity: The County's top nlanagcment has activated various

sustainability strategies lbr the County including but not linritcd to:

o Ensurirrg continuous compliarrce with governrnent laws, regulations. policies and

standards.

. ['.nsuring that substantial proportion of the county budget is allocated to the bursary fund

o Completed the I'ornrulation of a County Risk Management Framework Policy that hclp

the Countl identily and nritigate risks.

. I'.ngaging citizens through public participation to incorporate their ideas artd contributions

on County developrnent matters

d) Emplol,ccs'welfare
The Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund relies on the County Public Service Board that is

chargcd with tlrc hiring and empowering ol cmployecs in the County. l-hc Fund has bee-n

allocated cnrployees who serve in the |5 ward corrrnrittees.

xlx

c) Corporate Social Responsibility and Communitv E,ngagements

The Laikipia County llducation Bursary Fund has been cngaging citizens to identil_t' their

denrands and needs. holdirrg social corrrnunity activities e.g. leaders and elders' engagements.

This reasonably aided nrost berretlciaries to bc identiilcd and access the bursary.



I-aikipia (lounlv liducation llursan' Funrl
cport anrl Financial Statcnrcnts for thc vcar cntlctl 'lrrnc 30.2023

12. Statc cnt of Managcmcnt's Rcsponsihilities

Section
tinancial
Educatio
accorda
Board.

Thc Ad nistrator of the County Public Fund is responsible tbr the preparation and presentation of

67 of the Public I'inance Management Act. 2012 requires that. at the end of each

year. the Adnrinistrator of a County Public Fund established by Laikipia County

Bursary Act 2014 section 4(l) shall prepare financial statements for the Fund in
e with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards

ting and ntaintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
ial statentents. and ensuring that they are fiee fronr material nlisstaten'lents. whether due

tiaud: (iv) sal'cguarding thc assets of the Irund: (r') selecting and applving appropliate
policics: and (vi) nraking accour.rting estirnatcs that ale reasonahle itr the circrttr stances.

which havc bccn prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

and prudent .judgements and estirlates. in conl'onrrity with International Public Sector

g Standards (IPSAS). and in thc ntanner required by the PFM Act,2012 and the

ounty Education Bursary Fund Act 2014 applicable legislation establishing the County

d). The Adnrinistrator of the Fund is of the opinion that the lrund's financial statements

and fair view ofthe state ofFund's transactions during the financial year ended June

s financial statcments, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the lrund

at the end olthe financial ycar ended or.r.lune 30.2023. This responsibility includes: (i)

g adequate llnancial llanagentcnt arrangernents and ensuring that these continue to benraintaini
eli'ectivc throughout the reporting period; (ii) rnairrtaining proper accounting records. ra'hich

ith reasonable accuracy at any tinre the financial position ol the Fund; (iii) designing,

the Fund
tbr and a

disclosc
in.lplernc
thc tr nart

to cfr()r
accounti

statemen

reasonab
Accounti
Larkipia
Put,lic Ir

gl!'e a t

lhe Ad inistrator of the County Public Fund accepts responsibility tbr the frund's Irnancial

30. 2023 and of the Fund's flnancial position as at that date. The Adnrinistrator further contirm
eteness of the accounting records nraintained tbr the Fund. which have been relied upon

paration of thc Iund's financial statenrents as well as the adequacy of the systems of
thc corrp
in the pr
intcnrai ancial control

Nothing
going co

as come to the attention of the Adrninistrator to indicate that the Fund will not remain a

ern for at lcast the next tw'elvc rnonths fiorrr llre date of this statenlent

A p prova of the financial statemcnts

The Fun lr financial statements were approved by the Fund manager on 29'l' August 202j and

its behalf by:signcci o

.lohn (l i uki

rator of thc Laikipia Countr Education llursar.r' l-uncl

t

Adminis

xxr

Annual I



Laikipia Countl' llducation llursarl' l-unrl
Annual lle ort and Financial Statcntcnts lbr thc year cndcd Junc 30, 2023

I l, lleport of 'l'he Fund Adnrinistration

The Trustees submit their report together with the audited tlnancial statenrenrs tbr rhe year ended

June 30, 2023 which shou' the stiltc ()t'the I.uncl af'thi:'s.

l'rincipal activitics

'lhe principal activity of the lrund is to provide education bursary and scholarship awards ro

vulnerable students who hail tionr thc County in various education f'acilities across thc Country.

Ilesults

'[hc results of the l-und lbr the year ended J une 30, 2023 arc sct out on pagc I to 6

Auditors

Tlte Atrditor General is responsible fbr the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article

229 olthe Constitution ol'Kenya and the l,ublic Audit Act 2015.

tll order of'the Fund Administratiorr

1\,,j
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

Enhancing Accountabil i\,

REPORTI OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON LAIKIPIA COUNTY EDUCATION
BURSARK FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBI_E
I

I draw Vorfr attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Reporl on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fafiy presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accoufrting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on thelfinancial statements.

I

B. Reporl on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
complfunce with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidellnes and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficie{rt, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achier.{e6 value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

I

C. Reporl on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which lconsiders how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operafons. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
manalement environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charg{d with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

I

An unmo|ified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant pws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governanle systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year und{r review.

The thre[ parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibflities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Firfance Managemenl Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the repor{, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

I

REPORTION THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualifie{ Opinion

I have adrOiteO the accompanying financial statements of Laikipia County Education
Bursary Stnd set out on pages 1 to 38, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes
in net as$ts, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

Report o[the luditor-General on Laikipia County Education Bursary Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023

Tel{phone: .zSC{f ) 32i4ooo
e-nlait: inf o6oagklnya.go.ke
Wef site: www.oalenya.go.ke

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box Joo84-ooloo
NAIROBI



other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund as at
30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012 and the Laikipia County Education
Bursary Fund Act, 2014.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Dou btfu! Bursary Disbursements

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services expenses of Kshs.49,503,178, which
includes Kshs.48,068,000 on bursaries and scholarships disbursed to various secondary
schools and tertiary institutions for the benefit of needy students. However, no
acknowledgement receipts to support the disbursements were provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and validity of the disbursements on bursaries and
scholarships of Kshs.48,068,000 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Laikipia County Education Bursary Fund
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those mafters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-General on Laikipia County Education Bursary Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAI) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the activities, financial
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance, in all
material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the audit evidence
I have oMained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Concluslon

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAl)2315 and ISSAI 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
control, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material tespects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Managernent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the basis of accounting unless Management is
aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statemenls described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report of thlAuditor-General on Laikipia County Education Bursary Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professiorial skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Report of the Auditor-General on Laikipia County Education Bursary Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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. ldentifo and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Fund's ability
to conlinue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to suslain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS

Report of the fitditor-General on Laikipia County Education Bursary Fundfor the year ended 30 Juni, 2023
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14. Stat ent of Financial Pcrformancc for thc Ycar linded -10 .lunc 2023

l'lrc not set out on pagcs 23 to 2(r fornr an integral part ofthese Financial Statenrents

[*\L,Y L^

.Ioh;r (li hul<i

Adrnini ra tor of tlrc Funtl

Caleb Mrvangi

Funtl Accountant

ICPAK Mcmber Numher: 10187

Ilcvcn ues

From Non-lixchangc Transactions

Ironr the County GovcrnnretrtTransfer

Itcvcn u

2 .s0.000,000 25.000.000

50,000,(xx) 25,000,000

7Use of g ods and services

Ex pcn s

49,503,I 78

Total Iixpcnses 49,503,178

ilOthcr G ins/Losscs

35.l3l,720

35,I 3l ,720

(10,t31,720)Surplus(Dcficit) for the I'eriod 496,822

1' $

Description Notc
t'\'2022t2023 F\',202v22

Iislrs Kshs

'l-otal ll.cvcnuc
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f Financiul l)osition As at 30 Junc 2023

policies ancl explanatory notes to thcse l'inancial statenrcnts lirrm an intcgral part
statements. 'l'he entitl llnancial state ntcnts wcrc approvcd on August 29tt' 2A23

.l

of the Fund
Caleb Mwangi
Fund Accountant

ICPAK Mcmber Number: 10187

I

lh
ol'
and signed by

.-

i,;
Atl m in istrato

hn (iichuki

. Statement

A iscts

C u rrent Asset

Cpsh and Cash
ofLong- Term Reccivables From non-
actions

t2 1,339,046

I 39 0{(,

1,339 046

uivalents

sscts

42.224
C

E

urrent l)ortior
<change 1-ran

'l 'otal current
800.000

812.221
'l'otal Asse ts 842,224

L iabilitics

t' rt:rl l-iabiliti, )s

Net Asse ts I,339,016 812.221

A rrplus 1.3i9.044 842.222
't' rtal Nct Asse

:curnulatc

ts and [. ia bilitics 1,339,,0J6 812,221

1

t'\ 2w2!a \_Y_?!Ltn
KshsKshs

Nol (!
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16. Statement Of Changes in Net Assets for thc )'car cnded 30.Iunc 2023

10,505,9.12 t 0,505,9{2Ilalancc As At I ,luh' 2021

( I 0,I 3l ,720) ( I 0,I -31 .720)Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period

Funds Received During the Year

l'ransfers

.168.000468.000Prior year adjustment

812,222812,222Ilalance As At 30 ,lunc 2022

i142,222 812,222llalance As At Lluly 2022

496322 196,822Surplus/(Delicit) I:or thc l)criod

iunds Received During tlrc Ycar

Transf'ers

Revaluation Gain

I,339,0.1J r,339,0.1.1llalancc As At 30 .lunc 2023

I

E

a

.lohn Gichuki
Administrator of the Fund

n

C'alch Mrvangi

Fund Accountant

ICPAK Memher Numher: l0ltl7

(--

Dcsc ription
Rcl'oiving
Fund

I Rcr rrlultion
lo...rr'"

I IrT Kshs

Aecunrulaterl
surplus

Kshs

Iolal

hs
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Annual ltcporf and Financial Statenrents firr the yeur cnded June 3l), 2023

50,000.000

rl

') 50,000,000

800.{)00

50,800,000 50,000,000

1

25

Crsh lknvs from operating activities

Accounts Recei$bles fiom exchange and Non -exchange

Reccrpts liorn otfrcr operating activitics

A{counts payabl}s tiorn exchange transactions

Afcounts Recei{ables fiom exchange and Non -r)xchangc
transactlons I

Nct cash llon s fronr opcnting activitie s

Cesh llows I'r'orn investing activitics

Net cash llou's usctl in investing aclivities

Crsh llows l'rom linancing lctivitics

l3

I'ranslcrs liorn the County Covernment

Ileccipts

[-,ic ot goods ari{ s,:rvices

t ransact r()ns

lntercst reccivcd

Rqpayrnent of b{rrowings

'I'ott|l rcccr l)ts

49,503,178

1,296,822

35,t31,720

I,{06,78 r

( l ,100,000)

))

2I (264,5 5 8)

t,296,822

2I

17. Statenrent of Cash Flon's lbr Thc Year llntlcd l0 Junc 2023

f(et cash llous userl irr linancing aclivilics

Net increasc/(tlet'rcase) in cush & cash lltluir':rlenls

Caslr und caslr c uivalents at I July 2022

Cesh and c:rsh or;uivllents at J0 Jurrc 202J

Notes I

Dltc ttt thc c'h/rnge ol t;rethotl ts/ cu.th ./lott, prcpurution/ presentution fiont intlirect ltt dircct
na'tltod thut Pq4:;u hus presc'ribed./or ull cntitics unticr thc IPSAS ut'c'ru"il busis of uc'utunting.

liilowing, hu:; blen &nw
i. litr ,,,\rirtonr'y in compctrctbilitl, 1,7 ,7,./igures./br t"l 202 1/2022 v,irh L-l' 2022/2023,

huve raltuted compuruive puymcnt itams deriving the 'Ner L'ush Flow.t l'ntm Operuting
u.t par l,lote 2U. This has hov,ever nol chungetl the substtince oJ the Stutement ol the
c'ush/lol's.

ii. b'or F\ 202t/2022. hove re-c(ttegorizetl item "chunges in account.r' rec'eiwrbles" trs
"Accou{ts Receivables from Non -exchange transactions " /or Jigure Ksh:;. 1J00,000 u.s per
.\'ote l3l

.+

\. fr
l)escriptiou

20

.,+(

l'1., nrcn ts

2021-2022
' I(s[c

12.66 t.4()9

800.000

( r. r00.000)

a) )11
J06,78l

l,J19,0{5 12,223



Laikipia ()ounty Education Ilursary Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the ycar ended.lunc J0,2023

18. Statement Of Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts For The Period Ended J0 June 202J

Revenue KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs

52.200.000 (2,200,000) 50.000.000Translers from County Covt. FY 22123 50,000,000

Opening cash and cash equivalent 42.224 12,221 i1 '))a 100%

Total llcvcn uc 52,212,221 (2,200,000) 50,0t2,22{ 50,' 0{2,221

Expenscs

Use of Cioods and Services 52.200.000 (2.200,000) 50.000.000 49.50i. r78 496.822 99o/o

Total expend itu rc 52,200,000 (2,200,000) 50,000,000 {9,50J,l Ttt 196,822

Surplus (l)cficit) for the pcriod 12,22t -539,0{6 (496,822)

)

100%
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19. Notes

1."\lKll,l couN'l'Y UDUCA'nON llUlrsAtty t,'UNl)
ort antl Financial Slatenlcnts lbr the 1,eur endctl Junc 30,2023

the Financial Statelrr e nts

l unerrled .ytundurd:; trtul inlcry)rctdtio .y irr i:;.sue but not yel ellcctive in tlrc ),cut
.lune 2()23

IPSAS 4I:

lrrstrumcnt

inancial

Applicable: l'r January 2023

The objective of' ll'SAS .l I is to establish principles tbr thc tlnancial

reportints of tlnancial assets and liabilities that rvill prcsent rclcvant

and uscf'ul inlbrnration to uscrs ot' llnancial staternents lbr their

assessment ol' thc anrounts, tirning and unccrtainty ol'an l:ntity's

tirt u re cash llolvs.

IPSAS 4l providcs users of' llnancial statements rvith nrore usctirl

infbrrnation than II']SAS 29. b1':

. Applying a single classiflcation and rneasurcrnent rnodel lbr

tlnancial assets that considers the charactcristics ol'thc asset's

cash tlorvs and the objective tbr which the asset is held;

2. Statcnr

The Fund'

Internation

prescnted i

accounting

statenrcllts

cash tlow

prepared o

I . Gcnera I I n lbrnr ation

t of compliance and basis of prc;laration

tlnancial statenrents have been prepared in accordance rvith antl cornplv rvith

I Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 'l-he tlnancial st tcrlrcnts ilrc

Kenya shillings. rvhich is thc lunctional and reporting currency ol thc Iund. 'l'hc

policies hare been consistentlr applicd to all thc ),cars prcsentcd. 'l'he llnancial

ave been prepared on thc basis ot'historical cost, unlcss stated othenvise. 
.l 

hc

statement is prepared using the direct nrethod. 'l-he flnancial statcments arc

accrual basis.

J. Adolltio ol' ne ry antl rcvisctl stantllrds

(i) Nev o
eruled

6

l.aikipia Cfunty Bursary Fund is establishcd by and dcrivcs its authority and accountability

liorn Etlug[tion Bursary Fund Act. 'l'he entity is rvholly owned by the t-aikipia Counry

Cur.rn,n",ft and is domiciled in Kenya. -lhe entity's principal acriviry is to provide cducation
I

bursary and scholurship awards to students residing in l-aikipia County.

Iift'cctive datc and imDactStarrdard
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Benc ll ts

II'SAS {2: Social

A rlerrdnr ents to

Othcr IPSAS

rcsulting irorn IPSAS

41. Financial

Instrunr en ts

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

rnodel that is applicable to all financial instrurnents sub.iect to

inrpairnrent test ing: and

. Applying an irnproved hedge accounting rnodel that

broadens the hedging arrangenlents in scope ofthe guidance.

The rnodel develops a strong link between an [:-ntitv's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatrnent for

instruments held as part of the risk managernent strategy.

Applicable: l" .Ianuary 2023

The ob.icctive of this Standard is to improve the relevance. laithlul

representat iVencss and cornparability of the infbnnation that a

reporting ['.ntity provides in its financial staternerlts ahoul social

benefits.'fhe infornration provided should help users of the tlnancial

staternents and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ol such social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key fcaturcs of the operation of those social bcnetlt schcmes:

and

(c) The inrpact of such social benefits provided on the F.ntity's

financial perforrnance. tlnancial position and cash flows.

Applicahle: l" .Ianuary 2023

a) Amendnrents to IPSAS 5. to update the guidance related to the

cornponents of borrowing costs which were inadveftently

ornitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Arnendments to II)SAS 30, regarding illustrative exarnples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently orritted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendrnents to IPSAS 30. to update the guidance ibr

accounting lor financial guarantee contracts rvhich were

inadvertcntlv ornitted rvhen IPSAS 4l rvas issucd.

Anrendrrents to IPSAS 33. to update the guidancc on classifying

financial instrurncnts on initial adoption ol accrual hasis IPSAS

't

Effectivc date and impactStandard
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which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l r',as issued

vetncnts Applicuble I't Jutuury 202.')

. ll'SA:;22 Disclos:re ol Finunc'iut Inlbrnotion ubuut thc Gcnerul

Govc rntrcnt Sec'tor,

Amendments to ret'er to the latcst Systcrn of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

t ll'SAS 39: Enplo.vec l)cncjits

Now deletes the terrr composite social security beneflts as it is no

longer detined in ll'SAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: llecognition and

Measu rem en t

Standard no longer included in the 202 I TPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l rvhich is applicable fiom l'r January 2023.

( ii) New o
e ruled

umended .ytunclurcls uncl inte rpretut ion.t in issuc but not yet alJec'tive in the ycar
June 2023.

Other imp

to IPSAS

r

IPSAS 43 Applicuble I't Januur-t, 2025

The standard scts out the principlcs lbr thc recognition.

measurenrcnt, prescntation, and disclosure ol' leases.'l'he objective

is to ensure that lessecs and lessors pltlvide rc'levant infbrrnation in

a manncr that tiri,lrfirlly rcprcsents thosc lransactions. -l-his

infbrrnatio,n gives a basis fbr users of llnancial statellletrts to assess

the effect that leases have or.r the tlnancial position, tlnancial

perfbrmance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires cntities to recognise, measure and

present infbrrnation on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

II'SAS 44

Current As

tbr Sale an

Discorrtinu

ratt()nsope

d

rion-

ets Held

Applicuble I't Junuury 2025

The Standard requires.

Assets that meet the criteria to bc classifled as held tbr sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying alnount and fair valuc less costs

to sell and the deprcciation ol'such asscts tu ceasc and:

8

Effective drite rrnd iurptctStandarrl

Ellbctive date antl im pact:Standard
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(iii)Early adoption of standa rds

Thc Entity did not early - adopt any ncw or arnended standards in the finarrcial year

Assets that nleet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

prcsented separatcly in the staternent of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

staternent of fi nancial performance.

I

Effective date and impact:Standard
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COUN'I'Y E,DUCAI'ION I}UIIST\tTY I'UND
port and Financial Statements lbr thc year ended Jule 30,2023

nt Accountirrg l)olicies

e recogn ilion

e l'r0m non-exchange trans ctions

t-ont 0 ther govern nren t entities

m non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at t'air

ognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash. goods. services and property) it
is free fiorn conditions and it is probable that the econornic bcncflts or servicc

ated to the assct will flow to thc cntitv and can bc mcasurcd rcliablv.

I'rom exchangc tra nsactions

0nlc

me is accrued rrsing the eltl'ctivc yicld method. 'l'he etlcctivc l ield discounts
ture cash rcceipts through thc exl)cctcd lif'e ot'the tinancial assct to that assct's
amount. 'l he rnethod applies this yicld to the principal outstanding to determine

rne each period.

r similar distributions nlust be rccognizcd rvhen thc shareholdcr's or the Entity's
ive pa1'rnents is established

nte

me arising liorn operating leases on investment properties is accounted tbr on a
basis over the lease terms and included in revenue

in formation

I budget t'or FY 2022/2023 was approved by the County Assernbly of Laikipia on
22. Sub:cquent revisions or additional appropriations rvere made to the approvcil
rcordance rvith specitic approvals lionr the appropriate authorities. l'hc additional
ns arc added to the original hudget b1' the entity upon recciving the respective
order to conclude thc linal budgct. Accordirrgly, the Fund rccordctl no additional

ns on the l:Y 202212023 budgct tbllowing thc govcrning body's aplrroval.

budget is prepared on a dillerent basis to the actual incornc arrd expenditure
the flnancial statemcnts. 

-I'he linancial statcments are prcpared on accrual basis

ssification based on the nature ol' expenses in the staternent ot' tinancial

, rvhereas the budget is preparcd on a cash basis. 'fhc alnounts irr the tinancial
\\'ere recast fiorn the accrual basis to the cash basis and rcclassilled br
to be on thc same basis as the approved budget. A cornparison ot'budget and

nts, prepared on a cornparable basis to the approved budgct. is then presented irr

t of conrparison ot'budget and actual arnounts.

I' Signiticant Accounting Policics (Contin ued)
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In addition 1o the Basis difference. adiustrnents to alnounts in the tlnancial statements arc als<r

rnade lor diftercnccs in the lorrnats and classillcation schenrcs adopted for the presentation ol-
the tlnancial statcnrcnts arrd the approvcd budgct.

A statenrcnt to reconcile the actual airoulrts orr a conrparatrle basis included in the statcrncnl
ol conrparison ol budget and actual alllounts and the actuals as per the staternent of tlnancial
perforrrrancc has becn presented in thesc financial statenlents.

c) Propcrtr'. plant and equipmcnt

All propcrty. plant and equiprnent arc statcd at cost less accurnulated depreciation and
inrpairrnent losses. Cost irrcludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ol
the itenrs. Whcn significant parts of propcrty. plant and equiprnent are required to be re1'rlaced

at intervals. the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific uselul lives and
depreciates them accordingly. I-ikewise. when a ma.ior inspection is perforrred. its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount ol the plant and equiprnent as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and rnaintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transactiorr {br nil
or norninal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangiblc Asscts

Intangihle assets acquired separately are initially recognizcd at cost. The cost of intangiblc
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their lair value at the date of the exchange.
Foilowing initial recognition. intangible asscts are carricd at cost less any accumulated
atnortization and accumulated irnpairrnerrt losses. Internally generated intangible assets.

excluding capitalized developrnent costs. are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The uselul lilc of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indetlnite.

e) Invcstmcnt property

Investnlcnt properties are rneasured initialll, at cost. including transaction costs. The carry'ing

anlount includes the replacernent cost o1'components ol'an existing investment property at the

tirne that c()st is incurred if the recognition criteria are tnet and excludes the costs ofday-to-
day rnaintenance of an investrnent property. Investtnent property acquired through a non-

exchange transaction is measured at its lair value at the date ol acquisition. Investrnent

properlies arc derecognized either when they have been disposed ofor when the irrvestntent
property is pernranently withdrawn from use and no future econornic benefit or scrvice
potential is expected frorn its disposal. The diflerence betrveen the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount ol the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period oi- de-

recognition.

ll
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of Signiliclnt Accounting Policics (Continuetl)

ncinl inst l'rr nl cn ts

addrcsscs the classilication. measurcntent and de-rccognition ot' linancial asscts

al liabilities, introduces ncrv rulcs tbr hcdge accounting and a nerv impairrnent
lnallcla I asscts. 'l he cntity docs not have anl hedge relationships and th,:relbre thr".

accounting rules have no lrlrpact on the Company's linanciul statcments. A
strurnent is anv contract that givcs risc to a linancial asset of or':e entity, and a
bility or equity instrument ol'another entity. At initial recognirion. the entiry
tlnancial asset or tinancial liabilitl, at its lair value plus or minus. in the case ola
set or Iinancial liability not at lair value through surplus or delicit. rransaction

directly attributablc to the acquisition or issue ol'the linancial asscl or flnancial

sc ts

on ol'lirtarrcial asse ts

lassitles its financial ass€ts ils subsecluently rneastrred at amortisecl cost, l'air value

assets/ ccluity or fair value through surplus and delicit on the basis ol'both thc
ugernent nrodcl lirr linancial asscts and thc contractual cash llorv characteristics

cial assct. A linarrcial assct is rneasurcd at arnortized cost when the tlnancial asset

in a rnani.rgoncnt rnodcl rvhosc ob.icctivc is to hold flnancial assets in order to
ractual cash llorvs and thc contractual tcrrrrs ol'the Iinancial assct uive rise rrtr

tcs to cash llorvs that arc solcly piivrncnts ol' principal anr-l interr-st on thc
tstancling. A tlnancial asset is rtrcasurecl at lirir valuc through net asscts/ erprity il
ithin the rrlanagrnrcnt rnodcl u hosc objcctive is achieved b,v both collecting

cashtlows and selling linancial asscts ilnd the contractual terrtrs rrf'the flnancial
ise on specilied dates to cash llows that are solel-v Ddvlrcnts ol' principal and

hc prirrcipal antount uutstanding. A financial assct shall be nreastrrcd at tair value
plus or tlclicit unlcss it is mcasurcd at arnortized cost or tair valuc through net

tv unless an cntity has madc irrevocable election at initial recognition tbr
vestments in equ ity instrurncnts.

rncrsu rclllcn t

he business model and thc cash florv charactcristics, the entiry classifles irs

sets into amortized cost or lair value categories fbr financial instruments.
in fbir value are prcsented in cithcr surplus or detlcit or through net assets/ equity
rtain criteria bcing rnct.

t2
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Sunr nra rv of Signifi cant r\ccou nting l)olicics (()ontin ucrl )

Amortizcd cost

Ijinancial asscts lhat arc hcld lor collcction ol contractual cash flows whcre those cash flows

rcpresent solcly paymcnts ol principal and interest. and that are not designated at t'air value

through surplus or deficit. arc measured at arnortized cost. A gain or loss on an itrstrutnettt

that is subsequently measured at arnortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or irnpaired. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the eflective interest rate rnethod.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held lor collection ol contractual cash florvs and for selling the

financial assets. whcre the assets' cash flows represent solely payrnents of principal and

interest. are rncasured at lair valuc through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

arllourlt arc taken through net asscts. cxcept lor thc recognition ol irnpairment gains or losses.

interest rcverrue and tbreign cxchange gains and losses rvhich are recognized in

surplus/dclicit. Intcrest inconre lrorn thcse financial assets is included in finance incotne

using the elfectivc intercst rate rncthod.

Fair value through surplus or dcficit

Financial asscts lhat do not rncet thc critcria lor anrortized cost or lair value through nct

assets/ cquity are rleasured at lair valuc through surplus or deficit. A business tnodel rvherc

the entity nrarlages financial asscts rvith the ob.jective of rcalizing cash flows through solely

the sale of the assets would result in a lair value through surplus or deficit rnodel.

Trade and other reccivables

Trade and other receivables are rccogn iz-ed al fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed lor irnpairrnent on a continuing basis. An

eslimate is nrade of doubtful receivahles based on a revierv of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

I m pairm en t

The entity assesses. on a forward-looking basis. the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and lair value through net assets/equity. The

entity recognizes a loss allorvance for suclr losses at each reporting date. There are no Critical

estimales and significant.iudgnrents rnade by nlanagernent in deterrnining the expected credit

loss.

rl
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I

Sign itican{ Acctru nting Policies (Con tin uetl t
I

Financial 
fabilitics

Classilica{on
I

The entity lclassities its liabilities as subsequently measurecl at arnortized cost except tbr
financial ti{t,itities meusureci through profit t-rr loss.

Ig) I nvfntories
I

Inventory $ measurer.l at cost upon initial recognition. 'l'o the extent that inventory was
received th{ough non-cxchange transactions (lirr no cost or tbr a norninal cost), the cost ol'the
inventory if its lair vulue at thc datc ol'acrluisitiorr.

Costs incurfed in bringing each product to its prcsent location and conditions are accountcd
tirr. as tblltlrvs:

2 Rarl mfterials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method
I

> Fin ishdfl goods and work in progress: cost ol'direct materials and labour and a proportion
of mar|lf-acturing overheads bascd on the noirnal operating capacity, but excluding
bt,rrow[rg costs

Afier initial recognition, inventory is rneasured at the lower tll'co:t and net realizable value.
Hou,ever, tb the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or tbr
a nominal charge. that class of inventory is nreasured at thc lower o1' cost and current
replacenrert cost.Net realizable value is thc estirnated selling price in the ordinary course of
operations, less the cstimated costs of completion and thc estirnated costs necessary to Inake
thc sale. exlhange, or distributiorr. Inventories are recognized as an expense rvhen deployed
fbr utilization or consunlption in thc ordinary course of'operations of the Entity.

h ) Profvisions

I

Provisions |rc recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result ot'al past evcnt. it is probuble lhut Jn or.rtllo\\ ol'resources ernbodying ecorronric
bcrrctits or lservicc potL'ntial rvill bc recluirecl to scttle the obligation arrd a reliable cstimate
;an be rnafc ot' the arnount of'the obligation. Where the Entity expects sornc or all ol'a
provision tf bc reimbursed, fbr example, under an insurance contract, the reimburscrnent is
recognize-d ps a sepurate asset only lvhen the reimbursenrent is virtually ccrtain. l'hc expense
rclating to pn1 provision is presented in the statelllent ot'financial perfbrmance net of'any
reimbursenient.

I

i) Socfal Benelits
I

Social bendits are cash transt'ers provided to i) specitic individuals and / or households that

meet the ellgibilit-v criteria. ii) mitigate the effects olsocial risks and iii) Address the need of
society as { whole. 1'he cntity recognises a social beneflt as an expense tbr the social benetlt,l
scheme at lhe samc time that it recognises a liability. 1'he liability tbr the social berreflt

scheme is 
{neasured 

at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the

entity will ifrcur in tultilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

lrl
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.i) Contingent liahilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liabilrty but discloses details ofany contingencies
in the rrotes to the financial statements. unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

ernbodying ccononric bcnellts or scrvice potential is rcrnotc.

Contingcnt assets

.l'he lintity docs not recognize a contingcnt a:,set. but discloses details of a possible asset
rvhosc existcnce is contingent on the occurrencc or non-occurrence of one or nrore uncertain
firturc cvcnts nol rvholly vr,ithin the control of thc Ilntity in the notes to the financial
statenlents. Contingcnt asscts arc assessed continually to ensure that developnrents are
appropriately reflected in the financial stalenrents. Il it has beconre virtually certain that an

inflow o1- econornic benefits or scrvicc potential rvill arise and the asset's valuc can be

rlcasurcd reliably, thc asset and the rclated rcverruc arc rccognized in the financial statcnrcnts
olthe period in wlrich the changc occurs.

k) Naturc and purpose of reservcs

The Entity does not create nor maintains reserves in ternrs of specific requirernents

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospect ive ly. The eftbcts
of changes irr accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
im pract ical.

m) Fl,mployee benefits - Retirement bencfit plans

The Entity provides retirernent henefits for its e,rnployees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-erx ployment benetlt plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a

seDarate entit), (a lund) and will have no Iegal or constructive obligation to pay lurther
contributions if the lund does not hold sutficient assets to pay all enrployee benefits relating
to ernployee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to lund obligations lor
the payrncnt of retirement benefits are charged against inconre in the year in rvhich they
beconrc payable.

Dctlned bcnctit plans are post-crn p loynr e nt bcnelit plans other than dcfi ned-contribut ion
plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the pro.iected unit
credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sunr payrnents or
increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating enrployers. The
contributiorrs and lurnp surn payrnents reduce the post-ern pioyrnent benefit obligation.

t5
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Signilicunt Accou,rti,,g Policics (Continuul)

ign currencl' trans cti0ns

tcd pa rties

regards a related partv as a pcrson or an entilv rvith the ability tt-r cxct't control
, or jointly. or to exercisc signilicant intlucnce over the Entity, or vice versa
t'key rnanagenrent arc regardcd as rclatccl partics and comprisc thc directors, thc
n ror rnanagers

h a rrrl cirsh etluivirlcnts

sh equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank. short-terrn deposits on
hl1'liquid investments rrith an original rnaturitv of'thrce rnonths or less. which are
ertihle to knorvn arnounts ol'cash and arc subject to insigniticatrt risi: ol'chaness
k account balances includc amounts hcld at the Central Bank of Kerrva and at

rnercial banks at the end olthe flnancial year. For the purposes ofthesc llnancial
cash and cash equivalents also include short terrn cash imprests and advances to
ublic oflicers and/or institutions rvhich were not surrendered or accounted fbr at
e f inancial year.

pu rl tir e ligu rcs

l6

'lransactiofs in tbreign currencies are initially accounted lbr at the ruling rate olexchangc on
the dalc o{ thc transaction. 'l'rade crc'ditors or debtors denominaterj in lbreign currency arc
reportcd atlthe statement of tlnancial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on
that datc. {xchange dilt'crcnces arising fiom the settlernent ol'creditors, or tionr the reporting
ot' creditt,$ ut ratcs dift'erent lionr those at rvhich thcy were initially recorded during the
pcriod. arelrccognizcil as incorne or expenses in thc period in lvhich they arisc.

()) llorrolving costs

Borrowingl costs are capitalized against qualifying assets ai part of property, plant and
equipmentl Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is
being acqufred or constructed and borrorvings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases rvhen
constructi+ olthe usset is cornplcte. Further borrorving costs are charged to thc stalemcnt ot'
f inanc ial pf rfbrmance.

Where ncclssary cornparative figures fbr the prcvious tinancial year have been amended or
recontigurS to contbrrn to the re(luired changcs in prcsentation.
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Sumnrur), of Signi/icanl Acounling Politics (Continucd)

5. Significant.iutlgmcnts and sources of cstimation unccrtainty

-l'hc prcparation of the F.ntity's tlnarrcial staterrlerrts in conforrnity rvith IPSAS rcquires
nranagcmcnt to rrake.iudgrnents. cstinralcs and assurnptions that aflt'ect the reported anlounts
of'rcverrucs. expcnses, asscts and liahilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities. at the
crrd of thc rcporting period. l-lorvever. uncertainty about these assunrptions and estirnates
could rcsult in outcornes that require a nraterial ad.iustnrent to the carrying alnount of the asset

or liability allected in luture periods.

State all.judgernents, estimates and assurnptions made e.g.

a) E,stimatcs and assumptions -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estirnation uncertainty at
the reporting ,Jate. that have a significarrt risk of causing a nraterial ad.iustnrent to the carrying
amounts ol assets and liabilities within the nc\t tlnancial year. are described belorv. The
['.ntit1' bascd its assurnptions and estirnates on paratneters available rvhen the consolidated
financial statements uere prepared. However. existing circunrstances and assurnptions about
firturc developrrents rnay change due to market changes or circunrstances arising beyond the
control of the Entity. Such changes are rcflected in the assurnptions when they occur. IPSAS
I . t40.

h) Useful lives and residual valucs

'fhe usetul lives and residual values olassets are assessed using the lollowing indicators to
inlorrn potential luture use and value liorn disposal:

! l'hc condition of the asset based on tlre asscssment of experts ernployed by the Entity

! The nature of the asset. its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technologv and
processes

F The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

! Availability of funding to replace the asset

F Changes in the market in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and nranagenrent deternrined an estimate based on the inlorrnation
available. Additional disclosure of these cstilnates of Provisions are measured at the
nranagernent's best estinrate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value rvhere lhe eflect is material.

t7



LAIKIPI couNl'Y Ir)ucA'l't()N l]u ttsAlrY r,'uNn
Annual ll ort and Financial Stxtcnrcnts lbr the year ended Junc 30,202J

6. Notes T 'l'hc Filrancial Statcnren ts

2. 'l- ra ns rs lionr Countl' Covernnrertt

50,000,000

Covcrnnte
to the Truns/ars.frunr L'ounty ex(cutive eurncd. lhe trunsJlrs /rt) the County
werc rece ivcd.

J. l-incs, n a lties arrtl othcr lcvics

-1. I ntc tnc()iltc

Thi:; relat

ttillifl

Contribut i

Dorrat ion

s From I trc l)ublic

m Developnrcnt P.rrtners

l-ransfbrs I 25,000,000

Payments I

Unconditic

y Cr.runty On Behalf Ot"fhe Entity

50,000,000m County Covt. -Operations

al Developrnent grants

l'otal 25,000,000

Latc l)aym nt I)e na lt ie s

F ines

'l'otal

Interest lnc ;me From Mortgage Loarrs

lnterest lnc

I
'l'ota l lrrtc

)nre From Car l.oans

est I ncorrrc

@

r8

l. Public contributions anrl tlonations

!)..'rriplior. t$22-2{t2:,

I )(
l\!ill

I



I-A I K IPIA (]oTINTY IiI)TI(]A'IION I}I ]IISA ItY FTINI)
Annual l{cllorl anrl I,'inancial Slatcnrcnts firr lltc tear en(lc(l ,lunc.l0,202J

Notcs to thc Financial Statcnrcnts Continue<l

5. Other incomc

6, E,m plovec Costs

Tota I

7. Usc of (loods and Scrviccs

This ralelas lo 1inrcl a.rpandilurc in oper.tliorn. Tlr axl,cnses v'ere pttid for

8. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Property Plant and Equipnrent

Intangiblc Assets

Insurancc Recovcries

I ncolrrc tionr Salc o t' 
-l'enclcr 

I)()c unrcllts

Uad debts recovered

M iscellancous lncornc

Total Othcr I ncomc

Salaries And Wages

Staff Graruity

Bursaries and sc ho larsh ips 48.068.000 33.596.292

t.500.000Adrn inistration Fees l.-.i48.500

Bank Chargcs 86.678 3 5.428

J5.l 3l .720
'J 

oIaI 19.50J.1 78

Tot:rl

l9

2t {}2-l I zozt-zrtzz

Iishs

+

2021-2022

Kshs.

Dcscription 2022-2423

Kshs.

i



LAIKIPI c() Lj N'l'Y l,l D U cA'r' roN llu lls.,\RY t,'tiN l)
Ann ual ll, ort an(l Financial Statcnrents lirr the vcur entleri June J0.2023

9. Finan c()sts

10. (iain/( s) on disposal of assets

I l. Cain/ ss) on Fair Villue lnvcstnrcnts

12. Cash tl cash et; u iva lcn ts

Interest Or Bank Ove rdratis

lntercst Or Loans Frorn Banks

1'otal

I)ropert1 , [: lant And Equiprncnt

lntangible \ sscts
.lotal

Fit!!!ffilt at Fair Valuc- I:c;uitv investrnenl.s

IutrIIHIII lnvcslnrcnt pr0pcrt),

other llnancial asscts (spccil,v )tutrllEfit
[ralBt

Car l.oan \ccount

)rtgagc Accor.rntCounty M

I"ixed Dcg os its Acc()r,ult

On - Call Deposits

:c()unt t.339.046 42.224Current A

Others

1.339.046 12.224'l'ota I ( ar h And Cash Eq uivale nts

@tffiG
IffiatG
rttfttf

20

I)cscriirtiot 2022-2023

Kslt';

1021-2022

Kshs,

l)escriptioi
0



LAIKIPIA COUNTY EDT]CATION BURSARY FUNI)
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemcnts for the vear endetl .lune 30,202J

Notcs to the Financial Statcmcnts Continucd

[)ctailed anal,"-'sis olthc cash ancl cash cquivalcnts arc as lollorvs:

13. Ilcccivahlcs fronr Non-exchangc transactions

.,\tltlition:rl tlisclosrrrc on inl( rcsl rcccir:rlllt.

I n tcrcst Rccciva hlc

a) Currcnt Account

liarrilv Ilarr k t.i39.046 r) ))t
Suh- Total
(l rlnrl Tolll I,JJ9,0J6 12,221

Cu rren t Rcccivablcs

Ba lancc I]/F 800.000 25,000.000

Account Receivable from non-exchange transactions
(rnoney lent to departrnent) 800.000

I-ess: lrnpairrnent n llowance

Total Cu rrent Rr.ceivables 800,000 25,800.000

Non-Cu rrent Rcccivahlcs

Repaynrerrts of Receivables (800.000) 25.000.000

Total Non- Cu rrent l{eccivahles

Total Rcccivables Frorn Non-Exchange Transactions It00.000

Interest receivable lrom current portion ol long-term loans of
previous years

Accrued interest receivable from of long+erm loans of previous
years

lnterest receivahle from current portion of long-term loans

issued in the current year

Cu rrcn t loan rcpavments (luc

Current portion of long-term loans from previous years

Accrued principal lrotn long-tcrrns loans frorn prcvious periods

Current ponion ol long-terrn krans issued in the current year

2t

l
I

k

0(14000065823 
|



An n ual
I,,,\IKII' COUNTY EDUCAI'ION BURSARY FUND

Notcs to t

ort and Financial Statrments for the year ended June 30,2023

Financial Stxtements Continued

14. Prcpa ents

I5. I nven te\

16. I nvcst cnts in linancial asscls

I)r'cpl itl I{r.

I)repaid In:

lt

u rancc

Prepaid El

Other Prep ryrnents (Specity)

ctricity Costs

'l'otal

Consumable Stores

Spare Part s And Meters

Orhcr lnve{tories (Speci fy)

'l'otul I rrr

I{e a liza bl
$turies At Thc Lower Of Cost And Nct
dlValuc

lr. I nvt st rcnt in'Ircrsurt' bills anrl bontls
Finarrcial .lstituti()n

CI]K
CI]K
Sub- total
b. I nvcstr rent \r'ith Financial lnstitutiorrs/ lJanks

Bank v
Sub- total
c. l.-q u itr investrnents (specil'l )

Equity/ sh rcs in Entitr
Sub- total
(i rrntl to rl

-

)2

2t2L2[23
l)esc riplior

lr(

hs



LAIKIPIA COUNTY EDT]CATIoN I}TIRSARY FUND
Annual licport and Financial Statenrcnts for thc vcar entlctl ,lunc J0, 202J

Notes to the Financial Statcmcnts Continuerl

llf ovcmcnt of ul I nl'cstnr en ts

e) Shareholding in other entities
Frtr int,c.slnrcrtLs in aquil.t, .slwc li.stcd ohot,e. li.rl tlov'n thc cquity invc.stnrcnt.s undcr thc
fit I I ov i ng cotc gorics :

17. Propertv, plant and equipment

Disposals

i At l " .lult 2022

Additions

At the beginning of the year

Purchase of investrnents in the year

Cain/(loss) in lair value of investrnents through surplus or
deficit

At thc end of the 1,ear

Kshs Kshs Ksh s

Enriry n
[-.nt itv B
Entitv C

II
I

At l".Iulv 2021

Additions

i\t J0th.lunc 2022 I

Disposals

i\t 30th ,Irrne 202J

l)epreciation And
Impairmcnt

:.t

Namc of
Il-ntily
u hcre
inl'(rstnrcn
t is hckl

\o of sh:rres

Prior
vcar

valuc of
shircs

Fair
value of
sha rcs

l) ircct
sharcholdine

I nrlircct I I iffcct ir
slt:rreholtliug 

lsh:rlohold

N onrinal
value ol'
slra rcs

lrni,

l, u rrcnt
}ear

llr arlt

lrling
Kslr r

!'loro
vchii:

iicr
lotal

Kshs('rrst



LAIKIP c()uN'r'Y Et)ucA'l'toN tiuttsAltY F tjNt)
Annull ll rt and Financial Stalcnrents lbr the year crrtlcd.lune J0,202J

e 2023

I tl. lntan le assets

Ar End o
lrnpairrne

At L,nd O

19. I n vcst c t Propcrt)'

At I't July ,.022

Depreciatir n

At 30th Ju e 2(123

At l" Juh' 2lt22

Depreciatir n

Disposals

e 2023At 30t1,,lu

Nct Book /al ucs

At J0rr' .lur e 2022

At 30th Ju

g Of The Year

tat$

trIM
he Year

.\dditions

At End O

rvlllrtn n And lmpairmcnt

trII@ g Of 1'he Year

AmortizatiIn
'l'ltc Ycar

l-oss

he Yea r
NIIIIZ

lAt bcginnir g of the 1'ear

Additions l

q
@

@@

q

24

I

(-os

)rs



LAIKIPIA COUNTY E,DUCATION B(IRSARY FTINI)
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcments for the ycar enrlerl .lune J0' 2023

Disposal during the year
I

Deprcciation
I

Irnpairrnent
I

Gain/(loss) in tair value (if lair value is elected) I

At en<l of the vcar
I

20. Trarlc antl othcr pavahles from non exchangc transactions

( 154.000)

o/. of the

Total

2-3 vears

; Total (tic to abovc trrtal)

Thi,s re lotc.s trt the llnpresente d chcquc.\ FY 2020/2 I , out of which Kshs. I 2.661 ,199 vos
prc.scntadinFY202 l/22. Kshs. l.1l1.000ondK.sh.r. l51.000chcquc.tx'ar(rcvcrs<,d.

21. l)rovisions

Balance B/F (FY 2020121) t4.229.500

Pay'nrent of Accounts Payables (r2.66r.4ee)

Receipts from reversal ol cheques (prior
year FY202012l)

( t.4 t1.000)

Receipts frorn reversal of cheques (prior
year FY20 l9120)

Total Trade and Other Pavables
2022-

2023

o/o of the

Total 2021-2022

Ageing analysis (Trade and other
paya hles)

Under one vear t00%

l-2 vears 9o

%

Over 3 years %

100%

Balance At The Beginning OlThe Year

Additional Provisions

Provision Ljtilised

Change Due l'o Discount And Tirne Value

For Money

Transfers F ronr Non -Currenl Provisions

Balancc At Thc End Of Thc Ycar

25

I

I



I,AIKIPI COUN'I'Y I]DUCA]-I0N ITUITSAITY F'TJNI)
Anrruirl ll port antl Financial Statenrcnts lbr thc ve;rr cntletl June J0, 202J

Notes 'l'o c Financiul Statcnren ts (Continrretl)

22. llorro ings

( r. r00.000)

End of The Period

l'he table belorv sholvs the classillcatirrn ot' borrowings into extcrnal rnd donrcstic
borr'orv in

'l'hc tablc low shows the classitication ol'borrowings long-tenn and current borrowings

llalancc At llcginning of 'f he l)eriotl r. r00.000

External Bfrrowings During the Year

Dorncstic {orrowings During the Year

[{e pavrncn

I)criorl

Is Of External Borrowings During the

I{epay'rnen

[)eriod

ts Of Domestics Borrowings During the

lla la nce .^\

l'lrternal I orrorvirrgs

Dollar [)en rnrinatccl [.oan Frorn'X Organ isation'

Sterling Po

Organisatir

rnd Denominated Loan l"rorn 'Y
n'

Euro Dcno ninated Loan from Z Organisation'

l )oru csl ic I iorrorvings

Keny'a Shil

Kenya Shil

ing l-oan Frorn KCB

ing [-oan fiorn Barclals Bank

Kenva Sh il ing Loan fiorn Consolidated Bank

Borrorving Frorn Other Covernnrent InstitLrtions

Total llala rce at End Of The Year

Short'l'crnr []orrorvings (Current l)rrrt ion )

l-ong 'l crrn Borrowings
-l'otal

26

l)cscriptio

202 I -2022

Kshs



I,AIKIPIA COUNTY EDUCATI()N IITIRSARY FUN[)
Annual Rcllort anrl F inancial Statcnrents for thc vear cndctl .lunc J0, 202J

Notcs To Thc Financial Statcmcnts ((lontinucrl)

2J. Social hcncfit l-ia hilitics

Tota I (tic to tota ls a bovc)

21. Socia I llcncfit l-iabilitics

lncrease In Payables

I lcalth social benefit scherne

IJncmploynrent social benefit scherne

Orphancd and vulnerable bcne llt schcrnc

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary soc ial beneflts

Tota l

Currcnt social benefits

Non- currcrl( social hcnctlts

Su rplus/ (Dcficit) For the Yca r llcforc Tax

Ad.iustcd For:

f)cpreciation

A mortisat ion

Gains/ l-osses On Disposal Ol Assets

lnterest lncorne

F inance Cost

Working Capital Adjustmcnts

Increase In In ventory

lncrease In Receivables

Nct Cash F low F rom Opcrating Activitics

21

I)cscriiiiion

2021-2022



I,AIKIPI COUNl'Y tiDUCA'I'I()N I}tJ ITSARY I.'UNI)
Ann ual ll port and Financial Statenrcnts t'r-r r thc vear ended Junc 30,2023

Notes 'l'o hc Financial Statenrcnts (Continued)

25. Cash nerated from operations

l:inancc ('

\\'orking
Incrcase ln

crease) in Reccivables tiorrr cxchange transactions

lorv From Operating Activitics

25.000.000

( 12,6(t 1,499)

I,{06,78 t

Su rplus/ ( 196,822

Adjusted I

Deprec iat it

Amortisatir

(j0,1J1,720)

Cains/ Los

Intercst lnc

Dclicit) l'or the Year llclbre 'l'ax

') ll

rcs On Disposal Ol'Asscts

t)rne

rll

lor:

st

)apital Adj ustnrcnts

lnventorv

rtcreilsc) ln Receivablcs -Non-cxchangc transactions 800,000 (800,000)Dccreasc (l

Dccrease 1l

t,296,822Nct Cash I

.t8

I Kshs

lncrease (Qecrease) ln Payables



I,AIKII'IA COTJNTY E,DTICATION I}tIRSARY FTJNI)
Annual l{eport and Financial Statcments For thc vcar cndctl J0rr' .tune 202J

Notcs To Thc Financial Statcmcnts ((lontinucd)

26. Related pa rty halanccs

a) Nature of related party relationships

E,ntities and other parties related to thc Fund include thosc partics who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant intluence over its opcrating and financial decisions.
Related parties include managcrrent personnel. their associates and close lanrily nrcrnbers.
-l'hc 

hrnd/scherne is rclated to thc lollowing entities:

a)
b)

c)
d)

The County Governmcnt:
The Parent County Governrncnt Ministry;
Key rranagenrent:
Board of Trustces: etc.

h) llelatcd pa rtv transactions

c) Key management rcm uneration

rl) l)uc from rclatcrl parties

50.000.000'Irans lers Fron'' Related Partics'

Trarrsfers To Related Partics

50.000.000

Total 50,000,000 50,000,000

Roard OI'Tnrstecs

Key Managernent Colnpcnsation
'Iota 

I

[)uc [rrorn Parcnt M in istrl

[)ue Fronr County Governnrent

Total

29

't

Dcscription

2022-2023 2021-2022
Dcscription

Kshs Kslr s

Dcscription
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LAIKIPI COU N'IY EDUCA'I'IoN I}U ITSAITY I-UNI)
Anrtual ll rt and l-inancial Statenrcrrts [-or the vcar rndcd J0'l'June 202J

Other Dis los u rcs Continued

related partiesc) I)uc to

'l'otal

27. Conti cnt nssels and contingent liabilitics

Against thc Fund

ntces

2tJ. I'riu r ertr Ad ustrne llt

a lcl

l otuI

[)ue '['o 
Par 'ent Ministry

Due To Co unty Covernment

Duc lb Ke y Management Personnel

Court Case

Bank Cuar
'l otal

2022-21)23 2t)21-2022

Ksh s

[]rought fo

Kshs

154.000

ltcverscd s iale but unpresented c hcq ues 1.4 r4.000

[]orrorving that never materializcd FY 2020/2021 ( r. r00,000)
.168.000

30

l)cscriptior

I)cscriptioit
Kshs

t-20i
(sns
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LA I KI PIA CoT]NTY I]DI;CATION I}URST\IIY FTiN I)
Annual llcport and I inancial Statenrcnts F or the l cur cndcd J0'r' .lunc 202J

Notes To Thc Financial Statements (Continued)

29. Financial risk managemcnt

Thc Fund's activities exposc it to a variety ol't'inancial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and eft'ccts of changes in lbrcign cunency. l'hc Fund's ovcrall risk nlanagernent
progranlrnc tbcuses on unprcdictatrilitl,olcharrgcs in thc business errvironrncnt and seeks to
rnininrisc the potential adversc etl'ect of such risks on its perlonnance by sctting acceplable
levels of' risk. -fhe 

Fund does not hedge any risks and has in place policics to ensure that
credit is only cxtcnded to custonlers with an established credit history.

The Fund's tlnancial risk nranagenrent ob.iectives and policies are detailed below:

:r) ('rcrlit ris k

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay arnounts in lull when due. Credit risk arises frorn cash and cash equivalents. and deposits
with banks. as well as tradc and other reccivables and availab le-for-sa le tlnancial
investnlents. Management assesses the credit quality ofeach custonler. taking into account its
financial position. past experience and other factors. Individual risk linrits arc set based on

intcrnal or external assessrnent in accordance with linrits set by the dircctors. The alnounts
prescnted in the statenrent of tlnancial position arc nct of allou,ances lor douhttirl receivables.
estinlated by the entity's nranagcnlent based on prior experience and their asscssrnent olthe
current econorlic environrncnt. 'l-he carrying arrount ol- financial assets recorded in the
flnancial statcnrents representing the entity's rraxirnurn cxposure to credit risk without taking
accor.llrt olthe value of any collateral obtained is nrade up as tbllows:

Reccivablcs Irronr lixchange
-l'ransaclions

Rece ivahles Fronr Non-E,xchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

(NB: 7'hc lotol.s colrtntn,sfutuld tia to lhe inditidtrol clcnrcnls of credit ri,,;k di,sc'lo.sad in lhe
c n I i t t,'.\ .\ I o I c nl e n I of .fi no nc i o I 1to,r i t i o n )

At J0.lunc 2023

r.339.046 1.339.046

Total |,339,0,16 I,J39,0{6

At 30,lunc 2022

Receivahles Fronr Exchange
Transactions

Receivablcs Fronr Non-Exchange
Transactions 800.000800.0()0

Bank Balances 42.224 42.221

Tota I 812,221 812.221

il

Dcscriiltion
Total
amounl
Kshs

['ully
pcrfo rm ing
Kshs

I uast ttuc
I Kshs

lntpaircd
Kshs



l.AlKil't couN'r'Y E,DUCA'l'lON ttURSAtTY I'UND
Annual ort antl Firurrrcial Stittctnents l.'or the car endcd 30tl' June 202J

Notes To e F irrancial Statcntclrts (C'untinuerl)

The custo ers under the tully pcrlbrrning category are paying their debts as they continue
trad ing crcdit risk associatcd with thesc rcccivables is rninintal and the allowance firr
uncollccti e amounts that thc cntit\ has rccogniscd in thc llnancial statements is considcred

covcr any potcntially irrccor..:rable amoUnts.

I 
adeeuate t

I The enrity

l he board
u,ithin whi

U ltirnate
has built
entity's sh
cntrt) nra
tlou s.

l'he table
I iab ilit ies

d isc losed i

lnonths ccl

as signilicant corlccntration of'crcJit risk on arnounts due

f'trustees scts thc l"und's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
h thc l'arious aspects ol'crcdit risk rnanagernent are opcrated

b) Lirpui tv risk rna nagenrcnt

ponsibility fbr liquidity risk nranagenrent rests with thc Fund Adrninistraror, who
appropriate liquidity risk rnanagement t'ramework tbr the management ot' the
. medium and long-terrn tirnding and liquidity management requirernenrs. 1-he

ges liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of fbrecasts and actual cash

low represents cash tlorvs payablc by the F und under non-derivative tlnancial
their rerraining contractual ntaturities at the reporting date. l-he amounts

the table arc the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
I their carrying balances. as the inlpact of'discotrnting is not signilicant

At.]0.lunt 21t23

Trade Payq

C urrent l)or

lcs

ion Of l]orrowings

I)rovisions

Ernployec I lcneti t Obligation
'l'ot:tI

At 30 Jun€ 2022

'l'rade Paya rles

Current Pot tion Ol Borrow'ings

I)rov is ions

Employ'ee I

-l'otal
lcnclit Obligation

)J

I)escrilrtiorr
I Less thau I

i, 
rn orrtlr

I rrt.

Betu'een I -
3 nronths

Ksh s

I Ovcr 5

Irnorrths Tirt.rl

K-shs Kshs



Notcs To Thc Financial Statcnrcnts ((iontinucd)

c) Ma rkct risk

'flrc board has prrt in place an internal audit tunction to assist it in assessing the risk laced by
the entity on an ongoing hasis. evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising lrorn changes in market prices. such as interest rate. equity-

prices and loreign exchange rates which will aflect the entity's income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. The ob.jective of rnarket risk managernent is to manage and

control rnarket risk exposures within acceptable pararneters. while optirnising the return.
Overall responsibility for nranaging market risk rcsts with the Audit and Risk Managernent
Corn rn ittec.

The [rund's [;inancc [)epartrrcnt is responsihle for the developrnent of detailed risk
nlanagenrent policics (sub.ject to rcview and approval by Audit and Risk Managernent
('onrrnittee) and lor the day-to-day inrplenrentation ofthose policies.

There has bccn no changc to thc cntity's exposure to market risks or the rnanner in which it
lnanages and nreasures the risk.

i. Forcign crr rrcncv risk

-I-hc 
cntit,v has trarrsactional currency exposures. Such cxposure arises through purchases of'

goods and scrviccs that are donc in currencies othcr than the local currcncy. lnvoices
denorninated in loreign currencies are paid alter 30 days lronr the date of the irrvoice and
conversion at the tirnc of paynrcnt is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying alnount of the entity's foreign currency denominated rnonetary assets and
rnonetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Trade And Other Pavables

7he I"und managc.\ fitreign exchange risk.form.fulure conrmercial transactions ond recognised ossels and
liohililics h1, projecting.[or expccled salcs pntceed.s and ntalching the sante vith expecled pa),nrcnls

At 30.lunc 2023

Financial A ssets

Irlvestrncnts

Cash

Dehtors,' Reccivahlcs

I

Liultilitics

[]lrrou irtgs

Ne( Foreign Cu rrency Asset/(Liahilitl') I

I

-1-1
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I otn..
lcurrencics

I

I

Dcscription I I otal

I KshsKshs Kshs
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Notes To he Financial Statenrerr ts (Corrtinued)

-l 
he fbllo

on applyi
g table dcr:ronstratcs the et'fect c'n the Fur,d's staternent of tlnancial perlbrnrance
the sensitivity tbr a reasonable po55i!1" change in the exchange rate ol the three

marn tran ion currencies. with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also
occur il th Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant

ii. I n tcre rate risk

rt n sc\ ltllr r y liorn interest rate rnovcnlcnts on the Fund's deposits

Munui4c t tt/ interest rutc risk

'l o ntanag the interest rate risk. rnanagcnrcnt has cndeavoured to bank u'ith institutions that
of fer lavo ble intercst ratcs

Sensitivit.t' rlrrlt'sts

-l'hc Fund alyscs its inlcrcst rate cxposurc on a dynanric basis by c()nductlr)g a scnsiti'ity
analys is is involvcs deterrnining tltc irnpact on plolit or loss of ciclinctl ratc shilis. 'l'hc

lntcrest ra
result ol'
deposits.

sensltrvlty
exchange
prior year.
the statern

risk is thc risk that thc entity's llnancial condition rnay be adversely atl-ected as a
anges in interest rate levels. 'l-he entity's interest rate risk ariscs tiorn bank
is exposes the Fund to cash flow irrterest rate risk. fhe interest rate risk exposure

alysis tbr intcrest ratc risk assurrrcs that all othcr variables, in particular tbrcign
tes. remain constant. l.he analysis has been perlbrrncci on thc sarnc basis as thc
sing thc end ol'thc 1'ear ligures. thc scnsitivity analysis indicates the irnpact on
t ol'conrprchensivc incorne il'current t)oating interest ratcs incrcasc/dcc reasc b!'

onc perc tage point as a decrease/inc rease of Kshs 0 (2022: Kshs 0 ). A rate
increase/d rease ot' 5oZ rvould result in a decrease/increase in protit betbre tax of' Kshs

hs 0).o(202t -

(Cu rrenl l- ()

Eurcr 10,,u

(C()m parat ve FY)

l: rtto

USt)

r0%

to%

to%

l4

Foreigrr cu rrcncv scnsitivitt arrahsis

l)cscrilltior

( hrrrge iu

currcnc) ratc

Kshs

Effect on surplus/
. delicit . .

Kshs

I llfl'ert un

lcquity
Kshs

USD
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Capital risk management.

The ob.icctive olthe lrund's capital risk rnanagcrnent is to saleguard thc Fund's abilitl'to
continuc as a going colrccrn. Thc cntity capital str''rcture cornprises of the lollowirrg lunds

((iurrcnt FY)

Ilr';'r

30, Events after the reporting period

There were no rnaterial ad.justing and non- ad.justing events after the reporting period.

31. Ultimate and Holding Entity

-[hc entity is a County Public Fund established by [-aikipia County Education Bursary Fund

Act 2014 under the departrnent of Education. Its ultirnate parent is the County Gove rnntent of
Laikipia.

32. Currency'

The financial staternenls are prescnted in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

llo/n

[]st) l1Yo

(Comparative FY)

I:ttt rr t0%

I JSI) t0%

-.1 5

Changc in

:,""1:1f1l:
Ksh s

I Fi flcct orr

lequinl)cscriptior

KshsKshs

Efl'ect on surplus/
dclicit
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cles

rogrcss on Follorv Up Ol l'rior Ycar Aurlitor's llcconl rrr crrda tions

ing is the strmmary of issues raiscd by thc extcrnal auditor. and rnanagerncnt cornrncnls

v ided to thc autlitor

Annual

20. A

Arrncx l:

I'hc tbllo

that wcrc

Inaccuracies in
the statement of
comparison of
butlget and

actual amounts
-l-he 

statement ot'

cornparison ot'

budget and actual

arn()unts retlects

total incorne of'

kshs.50.042.224

wh ilc thc

statement ot'
tlnancial

pertorrnance and

note 2 retlects

receipt of
ksh s.2 5,00Lt,000

resulting to

unexplained and

unreconciled

variarrce of
ksh s.2 5.042.224.

Further the

stalement reflects

total payrnents o1'

kshs.49,36l ,220
while the

statcment of'

llnancial
pe rfbrrnancc

retlccts total

expcnses ol'
kshs.35. 131.720

'l'he variance ol'anroutrt
25,042,224 is duc to lhc
lirnd balancc o| 42,224
and also due to prior yeilr
receivables amounting
Kshs.25.000.000 that was
paid in the FY 2021/2022

l6

llcl'crencc
No. on the
cxtcrnrrl

audit lleflorl

ls.sue /
Obsc n'ations
Iront,luditlr

Stxlus:
( Rr'. olt t u /

Nut

ltesolvad)

f imcframt'
I'la riltgeht cnt conl nrcnts
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rcsu lting in
unexpla ined and

unreconciled

variance of'

kshs.14,229,500

This was noted. We

realized that nrost of the

institutions that receivcd

the chcques did provide

the acknowledgrnent
receipt, however the

beneficiaries when give n

the receipts do not share it

with us. we are in the

process of setting up

rneasures whereby for
each cheque written there

will be an

acknowledgement

receipts brought back to

us.

Doubtful
bursary
disbu rsements

The statenrent of
financial
perlorrnance and

as discloscd in

note 7 to the

financial

statelnents

reflects an

arnount of
Kshs.35.I 3 1.720

in respect to usc

of goods and

serv ices which

lirrther includes

33.596.292 on

bu rsaries and

scholarships

disbursed to
various

secondarv

schools and

tertiary

institutions.

lJowevcr no

ack rrowledgenren

t receipts

suppofting the

disbursernent

werc providcd lirr
audit review.

i7

Ilc[crcncc
No. on tlrc
extcrnal

aurlit Rcport

Issue /
O hscn'atio ns

fronr Auditor

Stttus:
(Rcsolvcl ,t

''Nol

Resoh'crl)

Iimcframe:
Ilanagement corn nrcnts

____l
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,loh rr (iic ki

Fund Ad inistrator

Da te.........

-18

Ilcfercncc
No. on the

exterual
aurlit lleport

Issuc /
0bselvations
fronr Airditor

Statur:

' llr:solved /
Not

llcsolvt'rl)

f imefranr e:

Hlz\N\
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Annex ll: lnter-Funtl Confirmation l-ettcr

Lakipia County Education Bursary Fund

ttll.

The Lakipia County Education Bursary Fund wishes to conflrm the no amounts disbursed to you as at l0'h June 2023 as indicated in the table
below, Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you rcceivcd and populate thc column tr- in thc table bclow Pleasc sign
and stamp this request in the space provided and retum it to us.

Re lerence
Number

Amount Received
by nil

(KShs) as at 30'h

June 202i
(E)

Diffbrences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)
Date

Disbursed

Amounts Disbursed by Lukipia Counly Etlut'ution Bursa4' Funl

Development (B)

uJ t) 0l -)lS sh a as t)

('

'Iotal

(D)-(A+B+C)
lntcr

M inisterial

ln confirrn that the amounts shown above are correct as olthc date indicatcd

Total

l)ate ..................n

Hcad of Accountants department of lrencficiary Fund:

i9

Conlirmation of anrounts received bl llnsert name of beneficiary Fundl as at 30th,Iune 202.1

Recurrent (A)

30,h
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Annex Ill: Reporting of Climate Relevant lixpenditures

Qr Q2 Q3 Q1

{t,,

Project
Nanrc

rr -,, ; -^r D-^: ^,.J D;^:^^+

Dcscrintion O lt.icctives {.ctir ities Fund s Partncrs

:

I
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Annex IV: Rcporting on Disaster Management Expenditure

4l

Colunrn I (loluhrn ll Colunrn lV
r ':.rtepor)' o I rlisi ,,tcr re [ated Activitl' that
rcriLr iiu cxpenditurc reporling
( rcs )lrse/fecovc miti rotl ss)

Prtrgramr':e Sub-

Fi.)giamlne

Colr'rnrt lll
Disaster
'l'.'rc

Colunrn Vl (-'olunrrr Vll
A rllount
( Kshs.)

Cornments


